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The Cleveland House, built by William Alexander in 1791, is located about 1 1/4 mile 
east of road S985 and 3 1/2 miles northeast of Ruckersville near the Savannah River in 
Elbert County. The house, a Plantation Plain style, is a two-story frame structure with 
enclosed porches and double hipped exterior end chimneys.

Presently, the exterior of the building is covered with a mask of red composition siding 
which obscures the window on the second floor and protects the original facade material which 
is weatherboard siding. Those windows that are visible are nine-over-six paned sash 
apertures. A one room appendage, also covered with red composition siding, is attached to 
the northern end of the house. This house, which sits on piles of stacked granite, is capped 
with a simple gable roof. The double hipped exterior end chimneys have an American Bond 
brick pattern with the ratio of three rows of stretchers to one row of headers. The bases of 
the chimneys are stepped and the stacks are decorated with a string-course. Inscribed on the 
chimney bricks is the barely legible date 1791 and the initials "W.A."

Typical of the Plantation Plain style, the house has a two-over-two room plan and 
enclosed front and rear shed porches. Each porch is partitioned into two rooms giving the 
main floor a total of six rooms, not including the appendage. Access to the two rooms on 
the second floor is provided by an enclosed staircase -which apparently was originally entered 
from the front porch portion that was later enclosed as a room. The two rooms enclosed from 
the front porch area are separated by a narrow entrance hall which leads to the door provid­ 
ing access to the center east room.

Inside the 10 foot high, two main rooms on the first floor ? twelve inch wide horizontal 
pine sheathing covers the walls. A beaded wainscot extends from the 6" baseboard to the 33" 
chair rail. Rooms of the enclosed front and rear porches have considerably lower, 7 foot 
ceilings with exposed beams and narrow paneling without beaded wainscot, chair rails or 
baseboards. All doors in the Cleveland House are six panel "cross and bible" type except the 
one to the stairs which is a batten door. The two segmental arched fireplaces, flanked by 
windows on each side, have 5 1/2 foot high pine mantelpieces with simple posts supporting a 
narrow plan frieze and shallow shelf.

Large trees shade a small area between the dirt road and the unoccupied Cleveland House 
which sits on a hill near where Coldwater Creek empties into the Savannah River. Two frame 
outbuildings are on the site: one 40 T northeast and the other 50 f southwest of the house.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Cleveland House of Elbert County is of statewide architectural significance as a 
relatively intact 18th century plantation plain style house. It embodies the distinctive 
characteristics of the plantation plain, which can be described as a frame, two story, two- 
over-two room gabled roof dwelling with exterior end chimneys. The house is of local 
importance as an early frame house in Elbert County history,

A date carved in the old, now crumbling, west chimney is difficult to read and has been 
interpreted both as 1741 and 1791. According to oral tradition the house was built in 1741. 
A newspaper article in 1965 quoted William Early Cleveland, who at the time had been living 
in the home for 68 years, as saying "it was his belief, and that of the old folks ahead of 
him" that the date (1741) refers to the years in which the house was built. This date is 
highly improbable, if not inconceivable, since Georgia was only founded in 1733 and to manage 
such a sophisticated structure so far inland in unsettled territory seems unlikely.

A later more plausible date of 1791 is based on close examination of the inscribed date 
and initials "W.A.", plus research with deeds and courthouse records. The location of the 
house, which sits on a hill near where Coldwater Creek empties into the Savannah River, does 
not argue against this later 18th century date, since the earliest settlers in this section 
followed the Savannah up from the sea.

This plantation plain is called the "Cleveland House" because it has been in that family 
for 132 years; but more recent evidences seems to suggest that the house was built by William 
Alexander, probably in the last decade of the eighteenth century. Not a great deal is known 
about William Alexander, except that he purchased the 200 acre land platt on the Savannah 
River from John Doss, a Revolutionary soldier, in 1789 for SO.'lbs of silver. In 1790, 
Alexander purchased some adjacent land - thereby expanding the estate to 400 acres. William 
Alexander owned this property until 1796, when the estate was purchased by John McGowen. 
McGowen sold it to Thomas Rowzer, the husband of Louisa Cleveland, in 1844.

The structural and stylistic integrity of this plantation plain has been well preserved. 
Today the Cleveland house sits unoccupied in its original site at the end of a long dirt road 
on Cade Cleveland's property. It is located within the Richard B. Russell Dam and Reservoir 
Project; but is not threatened as it will be well situated above the waters of the new lake.
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Cleveland House, Elbert County
Photographs by: David J. Kaminsky
Date: June, 1976
Negatives filed at: Department of Natural Resources

1. Front facade, looking southeast.

2. Parlor, looking east.

3. Mantel in east parlor, looking east.


